
 
 
 

 
 
 

          13 March 2012 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 

CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Wednesday, 21 March 2012 
beginning at 

7:00 pm 
in the 

The Dovetail Centre, Methodist Church,  
Winchester Road, Chandler's Ford, SO53 2GJ 

 
TO: Councillor Grahame Smith FIBMS (Chairman) 
 Councillor Mrs Pamela Holden-Brown (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Alan Broadhurst LCGI Councillor Mrs Haulwen V Broadhurst 
Councillor John L Caldwell MBCS CITP Councillor Judith Grajewski BSc 

MRPharmS 
Councillor Michael Hughes Councillor Godfrey G Olson OBE 

 
Staff Contacts: Karin James,  Democratic Services Officer Tel:023 8068 8113; 

Email: karin.james@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 Andy Milner, Area Co-ordinator Tel: 023 8068 8438; Email: 

andy.milner@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 
 
2008/09 
Tackling Climate Change 



AGENDA 
 

1. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2012.  
  
2. Apologies     
 
3. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.  

  
4. Public Participation     
 
5. Chairman's report     
 
6. Area Co-ordinator's Report     
 
7. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
8. Planning Application - 36 Valley Road, Chandler's Ford    (Pages 5 - 12)  

 Ref. F/11/69804 - Raising of ridge and alterations to roof, including side dormers, 
to provide additional living accommodation.  

  
9. Planning application - 5 Bournemouth Road, Chandler's Ford    (Pages 13 - 24)  

 Ref. F/11/70027 - Change of use from A1 retail to A3/A5 restaurant with hot food 
takeaway, two storey front extension, external extraction system, external bin store 
and new boundary treatment.  

  
10. Planning application - 107 Hiltingbury Road, Chandler's Ford    (Pages 25 - 34)  

 Ref. F/11/70039 - Increased ridge height to roof including 3no. dormers at front & 
two storey rear extension including 1no. rear dormer.  

  
11. Planning application - 6 Wychwood Grove, Chandler's Ford    (Pages 35 - 42)  

 Ref. F/12/70185 - Two storey side extension including re-sited single garage.  
  
12. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to report: that the following appeal 
has been allowed:- 
 
1a Stourvale Gardens, Chandler’s Ford – appeal against refusal to grant 
permission for a retrospective application for the erection of a summerhouse, 
additional fencing and installation of a garage door. (Ref: F/11/38386) (Original 
decision delegated).   

  
13. Community Grants 2012-2013    (Pages 43 - 52) 
 



14. Community Investment Programme 2012-2013    (Pages 53 - 64) 
 
15. Motion from Councillor Hughes - Parking in Hursley Service Road.      

 “That given the concerns raised by residents living on Hursley Service Road 
(opposite the flats on the site formerly occupied by Simpkins Garage) in respect of 
indiscriminate and inappropriate parking there, and noting the difficulty an 
emergency vehicle had in accessing and leaving the road, a traffic regulation order 
be pursued on this road prohibiting parking for non-residents and that the cost for 
this be found from within the Committee’s reserves.”  

  
16. Motion from Councillor Smith - 20mph speed limit      

 “That the Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area Committee requests 
Hampshire County Council introduce 20mph speed limits in residential roads within 
our area.  The roads that we consider as a priority are those where primary 
schools are located ie Hiltingbury Road, Merdon Avenue, Brownhill Road, Kings 
Road, Hillcrest Avenue and Oakmount Road.  However roads that are clearly used 
by children/parents en route to school should also be included. “  

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 13 June 2012 at 7:00 pm 

at Fryern Pavillion, Fryern Recreation Ground, 
Chandler's Ford 



This page is intentionally left blank



CHANDLER'S FORD AND HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 18 January 2012  (7:00 pm – 8:15 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor G Smith (Chairman); Councillors A Broadhurst, Mrs Broadhurst, 
Caldwell, Grajewski, Holden-Brown, M Hughes and Olson 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors R Smith 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2011 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.   
 
(NOTE: 1) Councillor Hughes highlighted the paragraph regarding the 
remedial works taking place at Chandler’s Ford lakes. He commented that 
he had noticed a large quantity of the shredded vegetation had been 
placed on Hiltingbury Recreation Ground which he felt was most 
unsatisfactory.  The Area Co-ordinator agreed to look into the matter and 
report back to members directly; and 2) Councillor Grajewski welcomed 
the installation of bollards at the end of Hiltingbury Road at the junction 
with Winchester Road.) 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Holden-Brown declared an interest in Item 8 - 36 Valley Road, 
Chandler’s Ford as the mother of the applicant.  
 
Councillor Grajewski declared a personal non prejudicial interest in Item 9 
- 5 Bournemouth Road, Chandler’s Ford.  
 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
None on this occasion. 
 
 

4. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT 
 
The Chairman welcomed Councillor Roger Smith to the meeting.  
Councillor Smith was attending as part of his Cabinet scrutiny role paying 
particular attention to the venue, which he stated met with his approval.  

Agenda Item 1

1



 
 

5. AREA CO-ORDINATOR'S REPORT 
 
The Area Co-ordinator reported that the latest edition of Chandler’s Ford 
News had just been published giving details of the work taking place at 
Fryern Recreation ground.  A working party had cleared an area of ancient 
woodland and would continue on Monday 23 January at 10am.  The 
pavilion refurbishment was almost complete with just a few minor tasks left 
to be completed, including painting the boards which were there to protect 
a layer of single skin brickwork.  It was confirmed that funding for an 
outside tap to facilitate watering the Diamond Jubilee garden was under 
consideration.  
 
 

6. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
Development Control staff gave a short presentation on guidelines that 
had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; in 
particular the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  This 
was set against the broader policy framework. 
 
 

7. PLANNING APPLICATION - 36 VALLEY ROAD, CHANDLER'S FORD 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development Control 
(Agenda item 8) concerning an application for raising the ridge and 
alterations to the roof, including side dormers, to provide additional living 
accommodation.  (Ref: F/11/69804). 
 
The Committee was advised that amended plans had been received 
changing the gable rear of the building to a barn hipped style. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be DEFERRED to the March meeting. 
 
(NOTE: 1) Councillor Holden-Brown declared an interest in this item, left 
the room and took no part in debate or voting thereon; and 2) The architect 
spoke in favour of the application). 
 

8. PLANNING APPLICATION - 5 BOURNEMOUTH ROAD, CHANDLER'S 
FORD 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development Control 
(Agenda item 9) concerning an application for change of use from A1 retail 
to A3/A5 restaurant with hot food takeaway, 2 bed staff flat at first floor, 
two storey front extension, external extraction system, external bin store 
and new boundary treatment.   (Ref: F/11/70027). 
 

2



The Committee was advised that the officer recommendation had been 
changed to defer, to give time to consider additional information recently 
supplied by the agent. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That permission be DEFERRED to the March meeting.  
 
(NOTE: Councillor Grajewski declared an interest in this item, remained in 
the room but took no part in debate or voting thereon). 
 

9. PLANNING APPEALS 
 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reported:- 

(a) that the following appeals had been allowed:- 
 

17 Hazel Close, Chandler’s Ford – appeal against 
refusal to grant permission for a pair of semi detached 
houses (Ref: F/10/68252) (original decision delegated).   

 
24 Parkway Gardens, Chandler’s Ford – appeal against 
refusal to grant permission to fell a horse chestnut tree 
(Ref: T/11/69290) (original decision delegated) 
 
92 Bournemouth Road, Chandler’s Ford – appeal 
against refusal to grant permission for a single storey 
rear extension (Ref: F/11/69223) (original decision 
delegated)  

 
(b) that the following appeal had been dismissed:- 

 
63 Lakewood Road, Chandler’s Ford – appeal against 
refusal to grant permission to crown lift a beech tree 
(Ref: T/11/69191) (original decision delegated).  

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
M4632 
 
 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



21/03/2012

APPLICATIONS RECOMMENDED FOR DECISION 

CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 21 March 2012 Case Officer Gary 
Osmond 

SITE: 36 Valley Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1GP 

A\1 Ref. F/11/69804 Received: 10/10/2011  (05/12/2011) 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs N Holden-Brown 

PROPOSAL: Raising of ridge and alterations to roof, including side 
dormers, to provide additional living accommodation 

AMENDMENTS: None 

Preamble:

Members will recall from the last Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Local Area 
Committee instructing officers to provide suggested wording of approval 
conditions.

The suggested approval conditions are as follows: 

(1) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: Location/Site Plan & WSC/11/06/01 
Sheet B.  Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of 
proper planning. 

(2) The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of 
three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

(3) Details and samples of all external facing and roofing materials must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences. The development must then accord 
with these approved details.  Reason: To ensure that the external 
appearance of the building is satisfactory. 

(4) Any windows or roof lights at first floor level on the eastern and western 
side elevations must be glazed with obscure glass and have no opening 
parts less than 1.7 metres above the floor level of the rooms which they 
serve and must be maintained in that condition.  Reason: To preserve the 
amenity of the adjoining properties. 

Agenda Item 8

5



(5) No construction or demolition work must take place except between the 
hours 0800 to 1800 Mondays to Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays 
and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.  Reason: To protect the 
amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings. 

(6) No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or from any other 
source shall take place on this site during the construction and fitting out 
process.  Reason: In the interests of amenity. 

Note to Applicant:  It is considered that, subject to compliance with the 
conditions and any obligations attached to this permission, the proposed 
development is acceptable because it will not materially harm the character 
of the area, the amenity of neighbours or highway safety and it is in 
accordance with the policies and proposals of the development plan, as 
listed below, and after due regard to all other relevant material 
considerations the local planning authority is of the opinion that permission 
should be granted.

The following development plan policies are relevant to this decision and the 
conditions attached to it: 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011, saved Policy [59.BE].

Under the Town and Country Planning [Fees for Applications and Deemed 
Applications][Amendment][England] Regulation 2008, a fee is now required 
for Discharge of Condition Applications. 
N.B. Conditions not fully discharged, invalidate the planning permission. 

6



For Information 

The original officer recommendation to refuse remains and the previous 
committee report is included below. 

RECOMMENDATION:

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION 

CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 

(1)  The proposed roof alterations, by virtue of their resulting mass, bulk, form, 
scale, height and design are not considered to be sympathetic or 
subservient to the application dwelling and would introduce a feature of 
unwelcome prominence within the existing street scene, to the detriment 
of the character and visual amenity of this section of Valley Road and 
views from Heathlands Road, as well as the appearance and character of 
the application dwelling. The proposals are therefore considered to be 
contrary to saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review (2001-2011) and Supplementary Planning Document 'Quality 
Places'. 

Note to Applicant:  This application has been determined using the 
following submitted plans: Location & WSC/11/06/01B. 

Original Report: 

This application has been referred to Committee because the applicant is 
directly related to a Member of the Committee. 

Description of application 

1. The application seeks approval for the raising of the existing ridge line 
and alterations to the form of the roof, including dormer windows to the 
side, to provide additional first floor living accommodation. 

Topography 

2. The application site and its immediate surroundings are relatively flat 
and level. 

Trees

7



3. There are a couple of protected trees to the rear of the site but neither 
of these, nor any immediately adjacent to the site would be affected by 
the proposed works. 

Boundary treatment 

4. The front northern boundary onto Valley Road is marked by a low brick 
wall with piers and timber in fill panels to an overall height of 
approximately 1.0 - 1.2 metres. To the side boundaries are fences of a 
similar height along the front half of the site which rise to 1.8 metres 
towards the rear to provide privacy for the rear gardens. The fence 
continues to the rear southern boundary which also has dense planting 
and trees. 

Site characteristics 

5. The property is a 1950s bungalow with a loft conversion and later 
single storey additions to the side and rear. The frontage is a good size 
with ample room for parking and turning. To the western side is a 
driveway leading to a single detached garage and to the east is a 
further area of hard standing. To the rear is a good size garden with 
trees at the end. 

Character of locality 

6. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature and made 
up of a mixture of mainly detached single and two storey dwellings of 
various ages and styles on good size plots. The site falls outside of any 
Special Character Area designation. 

Relevant planning history 

7. The bungalow was originally built in the 1950s, had a loft conversion in 
1960 and then later additions to the rear in the 70s and 80s. 

Representations received 

8. At the time of writing only one representation has been received in 
support of the proposal. 

Consultation responses 

Chandler’s Ford Parish Council

9. No objection. 

Policy context:  designation applicable to site 

 Within Built-Up Area Boundary 
 Within Established Residential Area 

8



Development plan policies 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011): 59.BE 
 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places 

Planning policy guidance / statement 

 PPS 1 – Delivering Sustainable Development 

Policy commentary 

10. The above policies combine to form the criteria on which this 
application will be assessed with particular regard to the principle of 
that proposed, its layout and design, impact upon the residential 
amenity of neighbouring properties, as well as upon the street scene 
and character of the surrounding area. 

Comment on representations received 

11. Letter of support is noted. 

Assessment of proposal: Development plan and / or legislative 
background 

12. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
states:  “If regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose 
of any determination to be made under the Planning Acts the 
determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise”. 

13. The proposal is considered to conflict with the relevant Development 
Plan policies. 

14. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

Principle

15. The application site lies within the urban edge and within an 
established residential area where the basic principle of development is 
acceptable. However, any formal planning approval is based upon the 
exact nature, design and impact of that proposed being considered 
acceptable and in accordance with the relevant saved policies of the 
adopted local plan and supplementary planning documents. 

16. The most relevant policy in this case is saved Policy 59.BE of the 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011) which requires all 
new development to take account of the context and character of its 
surroundings and neighbouring uses and not result in any unacceptable 
disturbance or impact. 

9



Layout & Design

17. The application proposes to raise the current ridge line of the bungalow 
by 1.4 metres to 6.9 metres in height and stretch the main roof back 
over an existing single storey rear extension. It is also proposed to alter 
the form of the roof from the current fully hipped design to a half-hipped 
front and rear. As originally submitted, the rear elevation was to be fully 
gabled but this has been altered to a half-hip to reduce the length of the 
ridgeline. The overall change in roof form will result in the main ridge 
length increasing from 1.1 metres to 10.4 metres and include a 
substantial pitched roof dormer to the western elevation and a smaller 
box dormer to the eastern elevation. These changes will increase the 
current first floor accommodation from a single bedroom to three plus a 
bathroom, including a master suite with en-suite and dressing room. 

18. While there is no objection from officers to providing additional first 
floor accommodation, the size, scale, form and height of that proposed 
is not considered to be sympathetic to the character or appearance of 
the existing bungalow, and will result in an excessively large and 
dominating roof. The proposal is not therefore considered to comply 
with the requirements of saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh Borough 
Local Plan Review (20010-2011). 

Residential Amenity

19. Despite the substantial size and scale of the roof proposed, the 
alterations will not have any adverse or unacceptable impact upon the 
residential amenity of any neighbouring property in terms of loss of 
privacy, light or outlook due to the orientation, proximity and 
relationship between the application dwelling and its neighbours. The 
outlook from a bedroom window to the side of No.34 will be quite 
severely affected but as this is a secondary window, it would be 
unreasonable to refuse the application for this reason. 

Street Scene & Area Character

20. The main concern with that proposed is its impact upon the street 
scene and character of this part of Valley Road. The substantial 
increase in the mass, bulk, depth and to a lesser degree height of the 
proposed roof will make the property very visible within the street scene 
and would appear to dominate its neighbouring bungalows. The site is 
also rather prominent, being sited directly opposite the junction with 
Heathlands Road. Therefore any alterations to the property will also 
have an impact on this street, as well as Valley Road. 

21. The proposed design would introduce a wide half-hipped front 
elevation in a street of mainly fully hipped roof dwellings. It would also 
introduce a very long main ridge line which will be clearly visible above 
the neighbouring bungalows when viewed from an angle along Valley 

10



Road. It is this greatly increased mass and bulk of the resulting room 
that raises concerns with regards to adverse and unacceptable impact 
upon the street scene, visual amenity and character of the area. 

22. It has been pointed out by the applicant that there are many examples 
of similar developments in the area. This may be the case but most of 
these are likely to have been constructed a number of years ago and 
would not necessarily be considered acceptable under today’s planning 
policies and guidance. Also each case must be judged on its own 
merits, simply because something was considered acceptable on one 
site does not make it acceptable for another. No specific sites have 
been highlighted but it should be noted that there is nothing similar 
within the immediate vicinity of the application site. 

23. The applicant has also pointed out that the immediate neighbouring 
property to the west of the site, No.38 Valley Road, is a substantial two 
storey semi-detached dwelling with a rather large dormer window to the 
side, which already dominates the application dwelling and the street 
scene. It is acknowledged that this property is obviously taller than the 
application dwelling and that its bulky side dormer does make it rather 
prominent in terms of the street scene. However, this does not 
necessarily make it acceptable to introduce another large bulky 
structure to the street scene which will perpetuate the current negative 
impact of the neighbouring property. 

Other material considerations 

24. It is considered that there are no other material considerations to 
warrant a decision otherwise than in accordance with the Development 
Plan and / or legislative background. 

Conclusion

25. To conclude, while there is no objection from officers to providing 
additional first floor accommodation, the resulting mass, bulk and 
depth, of the roof proposed, together with the increased height will have 
an unsympathetic, adverse and unacceptable impact upon the 
character and appearance of the street scene, the surrounding area 
and the application dwelling. The proposal is considered to be contrary 
to saved Policy 59.BE of the local plan, as well as the recently adopted 
Supplementary Planning Document ‘Quality Places’ and is therefore 
recommended for refusal. 

11



6

87a107-109

2

85

30.5m

40

13

1

6

30

HEATHLANDS
ROAD

7

CLO
SE

47

Issues

1
to

4

8

89

104

52

4

115

111

6

BROWNHILL CLOSE

10

Issues

1

83

27

5

ED & Ward

20

3

Court

5

1

17
30.2m

CF

111

13

19

44
105

5
to

8

8

39

14

5a

118

1

87

FB

BRO

5b

5

17

53

83a

12

9

CR

NEILSO
N

23

2

11

12

Grayton

101

CF

7

117

ACO
RN

DRIVE

28.3m

Sinks

VALLEY ROAD

1a

El Sub Sta

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with
the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C)
Crown copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.  Licence No. 100019622 (2012)

Development Control

Scale        1:1250
Map Ref   SU4321SW

Date         09/01/2012

12



CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 21 March 2012 Case Officer Gary Osmond 

SITE: 5 Bournemouth Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 
3DA

A\5 Ref. F/11/70027 Received: 17/11/2011  (24/01/2012) 

APPLICANT: Mr Jaz Mandair 

PROPOSAL: Change of use from A1 retail to A3/A5 restaurant with hot 
food takeaway, two storey front extension, external 
extraction system, external bin store and new boundary 
treatment

AMENDMENTS: 12/01/12 

RECOMMENDATION:

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION 

CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 

(1)  The proposed change of use would result in a further increase of non-A1 uses 
over and above the 35% limit allowed within the Bournemouth Road shopping 
area contrary to saved Policy 139.TC of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review (2001-2011) and to the detriment of the viability and vitality of this 
designated local shopping centre. 

Note to Applicant: This decision has been made based on the following 
submitted plans: JM BRD sht1x, JM BRD sht2x, JM BRD sht3x, JM BRD sht4x & 
JM BRD sht5x. 

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Caldwell, Grajewski, 
Hughes and Olson. 

Description of application 

1. The application seeks consent for the proposed change of use of the current 
vacant premises to a restaurant with hot food takeaway facility, including a two 
storey extension to the front of the building, as well as an external extractor 
flue, external bin store and new boundary treatment to the rear parking area. 
The original first floor flat proposed has been removed from the application. 

Agenda Item 9

13



Site area 

2. Approximately 310 square metres. 

Topography 

3. The site slopes down from south to north towards the adjacent railway cutting. 

Trees

4. There are no trees on the application site, although the sides of the railway 
cutting are well wooded. 

Boundary treatment 

5. The site opens straight onto the pavement along Bournemouth Road to the 
west. To the north is a neighbouring building, together with a 1.8 metre high 
diamond wire fence along the edge of the railway cutting. To the eastern rear 
boundary is a 1.2 – 1.5 metre high block work wall between the rear parking 
area and No.3 Bournemouth Road, a currently unoccupied bungalow, and to 
the south is a neighbouring two storey office building. 

Site characteristics 

6. The building is a 1960s/70s two storey flat roofed structure which originally 
had two retail units to the ground floor, one of which was a Post Office, as well 
as two flats at first floor. These two retail units have been knocked into one to 
form one larger unit in which the proposed restaurant would be located. The 
first floor is currently two flats but has been used as offices in the past. 

7. The ground floor unit was last used as a martial arts club which was granted a 
retrospective personal permission in 2009 but has recently closed down. A 
condition of this approval was that the premises would immediately revert back 
to an A1 retail use should the club close or move from the premises. 

Character of locality 

8. The application site forms one end of the Bournemouth Road shopping area 
which is a traditional shopping parade with a range of retail uses, as well as a 
number of takeaways and office space. To the north of this is the railway line 
which runs between Eastleigh and Romsey, with Chandler’s Ford Station 
being close by. The surrounding area is mainly residential in nature, although 
the large Chandler’s Ford Industrial Estate lies to the south-west of the 
shopping area. 

Relevant planning history 

9. As mentioned above the premises was last used as a Thai Boxing club which 
was granted retrospective planning consent in September 2009 by the Local 
Area Committee (application reference F/09/64820). While its use as a martial 

14



arts club was contrary to planning policy requirements, the view was taken by 
members that the club provided a much needed new community facility, which 
at the time was proving to be quite popular. 

10. However, in order to protect the long term vitality and viability of the 
Bournemouth Road shopping parade the permission given was a personal one 
limited only to that club for the teaching of martial arts and on the proviso that 
should the club close or move to another premises, the application premises 
would immediately revert back to its original A1 retail use. This was controlled 
via Condition 3 of the planning approval. Therefore, for planning purposes the 
unit is an A1 retail unit and not any other planning use, hence the application 
for a change of use from A1 to A3/A5. 

Representations received 

11. Two representations have been received objecting to the proposal on the 
grounds that there are already enough restaurants and takeaways in the area, 
as well as issues of parking and additional traffic. No further representations 
were received following the submission of amended plans and additional 
information.

Consultation responses 

Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy

12. Objection. The level of non-A1 uses within the shopping parade already 
exceeds the 35% limit set out by saved Policy 139.TC of the local plan and any 
further changes would be contrary to this policy unless other material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The additional information submitted does 
not change this original view. There is little evidence of marketing the site for 
an A1 use and it has also not been demonstrated that the consequential mix of 
uses in this location would not harm the vitality and viability of the shopping 
parade.

Head of Transportation and Engineering

13. Following an initial objection on the grounds of parking, access for deliveries 
and the proximity of the proposed front extension to the back of the footway, 
additional information has been submitted by the applicant and amendments to 
the proposed scheme made to remove the originally intended residential unit. 
The Head of Transportation and Engineering’s response to these changes is 
as follows. 

14. On the issue of parking. “Whilst parking remains insufficient in terms of what 
would be an anticipated requirement for on-site parking, it should at least cover 
staff requirements with a few additional ones remaining. It is also noted that 
the applicant appears to be in constructive negotiations with local businesses 
that are closed in the evening, in regard to utilising their parking facilities. 
Failing this, public parking is available in close proximity close to the rail 
station, and at times of high restaurant use (evenings) it would be anticipated 

15



that this would provide the additional capacity required without affecting the 
amenity of existing shop units nearby.” 

15. On the issue of access for delivery and refuse vehicles. “In regard to tracking, 
this also demonstrates that a transit type van can gain access to the site for 
rear deliveries. This is welcomed, as although the restaurant would be unlikely 
to cause more issues in regard to deliveries than the existing permitted A1 
use, it demonstrates the possibility that this will not take place on the highway 
causing congestion problems as is sometimes the case in regard to the units 
opposite.”

16. “Refuse collections remain an issue, but again this would be an issue with the 
A1 use also, and so as the problem is an existing one with no real on-site 
alternative, I would be inclined to let this continue as any issues would occur 
on minimal occasions throughout the week.” 

17. “The building ground floor frontage is not set back as far as it would be 
desirable to provide more space alongside Bournemouth road, but if there is 
no planning support for this the application can be approved as submitted.” 
The proposed one way access arrangement should also be conditioned as 
part of any approval.

Head of Environmental Health

18. No objection in principle but there are concerns with regards to noise and 
odour affecting nearby residential properties. Conditions requiring odour 
neutralising plant and noise mitigation measures are recommended should the 
application be approved. 

Chandler’s Ford Parish Council

19. No objection to the proposed change of use but members queried the 
adequacy of parking arrangements and safe entry and exit from the site. 

Policy context:  designation applicable to site 

 Within Built-Up Area Boundary 
 Within Designated Shopping parade 

Development plan policies 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011): 59.BE, 139.TC, 141.TC & 
142.TC

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places 
 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations 

Planning policy guidance / statement 

 PPS 1 – Delivering Sustainable Development 
 PPS 4 – Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth 

16



 PPG 13 – Transport   

Policy commentary 

20. The above policies combine to form the criteria on which this application will 
be assessed with particular regard to the principle of that proposed, its layout 
and design, impact upon the amenity of neighbouring properties and the 
surrounding area, parking and highway safety, the street scene and character 
of the area. 

Comment on consultation responses 

21. All comments are noted and responded to where appropriate below. 

Comment on representations received 

22. All comments are noted and responded to where appropriate below.  

Assessment of proposal: Development plan and / or legislative background 

23. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:  “If 
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the Planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise”.

24. The proposal is considered to conflict with the relevant Development Plan 
policies. 

25. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

Principle

26. The application site is within the urban edge where the basic principle of 
development is acceptable, as well as being within an established local 
shopping area. This being the case, the most relevant local plan policy is 
saved Policy 139.TC which states that proposals for the change of use of A1 
retail uses to other ‘A’ class uses will be considered acceptable within 
designated local shopping centres provided the proportion of non-A1 uses 
does not exceed 35% of the total shopping frontage length of the centre. 

27. No.5, being one of the largest units, equates to 11% of the frontage length of 
the Bournemouth Road parade. At the present time and based on the latest 
occupancy details, the percentage of non-A1 uses within the parade stands at 
39%, already over the 35% limit allowed by Policy 139.TC. If approved, the 
proposed change of use would result in 50% of the parade being non-A1 uses, 
considerably more than the limit set out. In principle terms therefore, the 
proposal is contrary to policy and is not acceptable. 

17



28. Also of relevance is saved Policy 141.TC which encourages the use of upper 
floors within shopping areas. The application proposes to use the first floor of 
the building as additional floor space for the restaurant and therefore conforms 
with this policy. 

29. Saved Policy 142.TC relates specifically to proposals for hot foot outlets and 
states that the change of use to A3, A4 or A5 uses will be considered 
acceptable provided any nearby residential units are not adversely affected, 
any noise or odours can be adequately dealt with and that there is suitable 
provision for the storage and collection of waste. 

30. As well as these more specific policies, saved Policy 59.BE also applies and 
ensures that any proposal meets a good standard of design and takes 
appropriate account of its context, neighbouring uses and the character of the 
area.

Layout and Design

31. In addition to the change of use the proposal also includes a two storey 
extension to the front of the building, as well as replacing the current tile hung 
first floor with a rendered finish. This would not only provide more floor space 
but also improve the appearance of the building, which is in need of work. The 
front extension will square off the front elevation of the building which is 
currently in two halves, one being set back from the other. Overall the building 
will be no closer to the road than at present and should not encroach onto 
highway land.

32. However, the Head of Transportation and Engineering has raised a concern 
that pulling the building forward will reduce the current width of the pavement 
and severely limit visibility for drivers when exiting the site and making it 
difficult for them to see pedestrians on the footway. Guidance suggests that in 
areas such as shopping parades the pavement width provided should be 3.0 
metres, to allow easy and safe movement of pedestrians. While pulling part of 
the building forward will reduce the pavement width, that remaining will almost 
be the 3.0 metres required. It would therefore be unreasonable to refuse the 
application on these grounds. 

33. The remainder of the alterations will be internal, providing a kitchen to the rear 
and opening up the first floor to provide more seating, accessed via a new 
staircase towards the front of the building. Other works include providing a 
false chimney to hide the kitchen extractor flue, a secure external bin store, a 
new boundary fence along the edge of the railway cutting, as well as 
resurfacing the rear parking area in tarmac. 

34. All of these alterations will certainly be an improvement over the present 
building which is in need of work and which does not help with the appearance 
of the shopping parade. However, the issue of the principle remains, in that the 
proposed change of use is contrary to policy. While the physical improvements 
are welcomed, this is not considered sufficient to overcome the policy issue, 

18



especially considering there appears to have been no attempt to try and let the 
unit to a retail tenant since the boxing club closed. 

Amenity

35. With the removal of the first floor flat originally proposed, the main amenity 
issue to be considered is the proposal’s impact upon the general amenity of 
the area and sensitive neighbouring uses. 

36. With regards to general impact upon the amenity of the surrounding area, 
provided a suitable odour neutralising and extraction system is installed, this 
should not cause any problems. Potential additional traffic is not considered to 
be an issue as Bournemouth Road is a very busy main road and any additional 
traffic will have a very minimal impact. Objections on other issues of noise and 
disturbance would be hard to sustain given the busy nature of the road and the 
number of similar businesses opposite. 

Parking & Highway Safety

37. While the Head of Transportation and Engineering is generally happy with the 
proposed parking arrangements for staff, there will still be little on-site parking 
provision for customers. However, there is a free public car park a short 
distance away at the railway station which could be used by customers and 
staff if required, as well as the possibility that an arrangement can be agreed 
with neighbouring businesses to use their daytime parking during evening 
hours. It would therefore be difficult to justify a refusal on the grounds of 
insufficient parking. 

38. The main highway concern however, is to ensure that delivery and refuse 
vehicles can adequately service the site without causing any adverse impact 
upon traffic or pedestrians using Bournemouth Road. This is a very busy and 
relatively narrow section of road where the parking area on the western side is 
heavily used and often full at peak times. It is also one of the main bus routes 
through Chandler’s Ford and is well used by pedestrians and railway 
commuters. Even a minor hold up here can cause traffic to back up 
considerably.

39. This being the case, deliveries to the proposed restaurant and takeaway will 
need to be undertaken at the rear of the side, as parking on the highway or 
pavement to the front will not be acceptable as it is likely to result in 
compromising traffic flow along Bournemouth Road and vehicles manoeuvring 
in and out of the parking spaces opposite, as well as pedestrians. Previously 
concerns were raised that the access to the rear of the site down the side of 
the building is very narrow and would be further compromised by the proposed 
front extension, and that space at the rear is also limited and would leave little 
room to turn a vehicle, especially if others are already parked there. 

40. In order to address these concerns additional information on the frequency of 
deliveries as well as a vehicle tracking plan has been submitted. This has been 
assessed by the Head of Transportation and Engineering who is now satisfied 

19



that there is sufficient room to allow a Transit van sized vehicle to access and 
manoeuvre within the site, thereby helping to prevent unnecessary obstruction 
of the highway. The issue still remains with regards to refuse vehicles but this 
is also the case for almost every commercial unit within the shopping area. It 
would therefore be unreasonable refuse the application on these grounds. 

41. The other highway concern raised is that the proposed front extension will 
compromise the visibility of drivers when exiting the site, in that it will be harder 
to see pedestrians using the pavement. A similar situation exists at the rear 
access to No.7 Bournemouth Road, i.e. the building impairs driver’s vision of 
the footway. In order to address this concern a one way system has been 
proposed. Vehicles would enter the site via the access at the northern side of 
the building and leave via the access on the southern side of No.7, which of 
the two is the better option as an exit. This arrangement already exists in an 
informal way but could potentially be more formally adopted via a condition of 
any planning approval, although it does rely on the owner of No.7 
Bournemouth Road allowing this arrangement to continue. 

Street Scene and Area Character

42. As stated above, the external alterations to the building are welcomed and 
would help to improve the general appearance of the Bournemouth Road 
parade. However, the principle issue remains that the proposed change of use 
would result in a significantly greater proportion of non-A1 uses than is allowed 
by saved Policy 139.TC of the adopted local plan. This policy is intended to 
help local shopping areas to retain a good range of uses, primarily retail but 
also other services in order to provide for the communities which they serve 
and to maintain the long term vitality and viability of the shopping area. 

43. The applicant’s agent argues that the last use of the premises as the boxing 
club was a non-A1 use. Therefore the percentage of non-A1 uses within the 
shopping area will not increase. However, the retrospective approval for the 
boxing club was granted as an exception to policy as it was felt by the 
Committee Members to benefit the local community and helped provide more 
trade for the other businesses within the parade. The continued use of the 
premises for non-A1 purposes was not considered to be acceptable, hence the 
restrictions applied to the approval and the requirement for it to immediately 
revert back to an A1 retail use. 

44. The applicant’s agent also argues that the unit is currently vacant and that the 
Bournemouth Road shopping parade is struggling. While the unit is vacant, it 
has only been so for a short period of a few months and no evidence has been 
provided to show that it has been marketed as an A1 retail unit or if there has 
been any interest other than for that proposed. According to the Council’s last 
‘Town Centre, Local Centres and Shopping Parades – Details of Occupancy’ 
background paper, dated September 2011, all of the retail and commercial 
units within the parade were in occupation, although it is acknowledged that 
the fishmongers at No.15 has since closed. It is therefore felt that the 
assumption made about a struggling shopping area is a little unfair, two vacant 
units (the fishmongers and the application site) out of eighteen given the 

20



current economic conditions would seem to show that the Bournemouth Road 
parade is actually doing quite well, particularly considering it is not the main 
shopping area for Chandler’s Ford. 

45. The circumstances of the previous retrospective planning permission are 
considerably different from that now under consideration and it is felt that there 
is insufficient justification to allow a further exception to policy, particularly as 
no evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that there has been no retail 
interest in the premises or that it has been marketed as an A1 retail unit. If 
approved, the vitality and mix of uses within the Bournemouth Road parade 
would be compromised. While it would bring a currently vacant unit back into 
use and improve the appearance of the building, it would also be in direct 
competition with up to four other businesses within the parade. While it is not 
the planning system’s place to prevent competition, the ability for the parade to 
support so many similar businesses does need to be questioned. It was for this 
reason that Policy 139.TC of the local plan sets a 35% non-A1 limit, in order to 
try and ensure the long term vitality and viability of local shopping parades and 
centres.

Planning obligation /considerations 

46. It is considered that the trip rates to and from the proposed A3/A5 use will be 
no greater than the last use as a boxing club or as an A1 retail use and is 
unlikely to generate significant additional traffic to the area. It is for these 
reasons that transport contributions have not been requested. 

Other material considerations 

47. Greg Clark’s Ministerial Statement ‘Planning for Growth’ which was published 
in March last year encourages local authorities to look positively on 
applications which will help to stimulate sustainable economic growth. 
However, this does not mean that any proposal to use an empty unit should 
automatically be approved just to bring it back into use, as this would not take 
into account the longer term impact of such an approach. A balance of uses 
within shopping areas still needs to be maintained in order to ensure that long 
term vitality and viability of the shopping area is protected, hence the 
limitations of saved Policy 139.TC. 

48. Also of some relevance is the Government’s draft ‘National Planning Policy 
Framework’ which sets out the Government’s future intensions for the planning 
system and gives an assumption in favour of sustainable economic 
development. However, this is currently only draft guidance which at this time 
carries limited weight and may be subject to significant changes before being 
formally adopted. 

49. Also of relevance is the Council’s new draft local plan for the period 2011-
2029, of which Policy DH43 reiterates the 35% non-A1 use limit within local 
shopping centres and parades set out by current saved Policy 139.TC. While 
again this draft local plan carries limited weight at this time, it does show an 

21



intention by the Council to maintain an appropriate balance of A1 retail and 
non-A1 uses within designated local shopping areas. 

Conclusion

50. Despite the applicant’s agent’s argument that the last use of the application 
site was for a non-A1 use, therefore resulting in no further loss of A1 within the 
Bournemouth Road parade, the previous approval for the boxing club was only 
granted due to the particular circumstances of the case and on the proviso that 
the unit would revert back to its original A1 retail use as soon as the club 
closed or moved elsewhere. It is officers opinion that insufficient evidence has 
been provided to demonstrate that an exception to policy is justified or that the 
premises has even been marketed for an A1 retail use. 

51. While it is acknowledged that the physical alterations to the building will be an 
improvement and that the previous highway and parking concerns have been 
addressed, this is not considered enough to overcome the principle policy 
objection to the proposal. It is for this reason that the application is 
recommended for refusal. 

22



Sloping

4

13

18

4

1

Kilda

Club

El Sub Sta

7

Deakin Court

As
hl

ei
gh

4

11

7

1to
8

4

The Central Precinct

1
to

6

1 to 6

1

16

8

Fernvale

1 17

8

Pinedale

W
IN

CH
ES

TE

Chalvington Court

ROMAN

2

El
Su

b
St

a

MID
HURST

COURT

b
masonry

Amersham House

3

7

Shelter

22

10to22

20

2

STA
TIO

N
LA

N
E

21

5

1

19

CR

1to4

Bank

20

2

FB

Ketts

9to
15

Chellowdene

The Oaks

3

Sloping masonry

22

6

2

1

Hilldale
2

Bank

17

15

ROAD

18

St

Posts

Car Park

6

37.2m

PC

33.8m

3

7

Dovedale

1

1to14

(co
urse

of)

19

11

29

ED
&

W
ard Bdy

3

17

1

d

3

8

House

28

34

TCB

5

9

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with
the permission of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C)
Crown copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes
Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.  Licence No. 100019622 (2012)

Development Control

Scale        1:1250
Map Ref   SU4320SW

Date         09/01/2012

23



24

This page is intentionally left blank



CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 21 March 2012 Case Officer Gary Osmond 

SITE: 107 Hiltingbury Road, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 
5NP

A\6 Ref. F/11/70039 Received: 21/11/2011  (16/01/2012) 

APPLICANT: Mr Arvinder Aujla 

PROPOSAL: Increased ridge height to roof including 3no. dormers at 
front & two storey rear extension including 1no. rear 
dormer

AMENDMENTS: None 
RECOMMENDATION:

PERMIT 

CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 

(1)  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following approved plans: 100/1, 100/2, 100/3 Rev.2, 100/4 Rev.2, 100/5 Rev.2 & 
100/6 Rev.2.  Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

(2)  The development hereby permitted must be begun within a period of three years 
beginning with the date on which this permission is granted.  Reason: To comply 
with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

(3)  Details and samples of all external facing and roofing materials must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 
development commences. The development must then accord with these 
approved details.  Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the 
resulting building is satisfactory. 

(4)  The development shall not begin until a scheme of works to deal with dust from 
site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The agreed scheme shall then be implemented and retained to the 
satisfaction of the local Planning Authority.  Reason: To protect the amenity of 
the occupiers of adjoining properties. 

(5)  No construction or demolition work must take place except between the hours 
0800 to 1800 Mondays to Fridays or 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on 
Sundays or Public Holidays.  Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers 
of nearby dwellings. 

Agenda Item 10

25



(6)  No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or from any other source shall 
take place on this site during the construction and fitting out process.  Reason: In 
the interests of amenity. 

(7)  No driven piling shall take place on this site during the construction and fitting out 
process.  Reason: To protect the amenity of occupiers of adjoining residential 
properties.

(8)  The roof light windows at first floor level on the western side elevation of the 
resulting dwelling must be glazed with obscure glass and fixed shut or positioned 
so that the bottom cill is set at least 1.7 metres above the floor level of the rooms 
which they serve and must be maintained in that condition.  Reason: To preserve 
the amenity of the adjoining property. 

(9)  The development hereby permitted must not be brought into use until at least 
three off-road parking spaces shall have been made available and surfaced, and 
must be reserved for that purpose at all times.  Reason: In the interests of 
highway safety/amenity. 

Note to Applicant: The application site lies on a formerly excavated site. The 
presence of 'made ground' and / or contaminants in the ground cannot be ruled out 
and therefore we would recommend that the risks to the development be considered; 
including the design of the floor construction and the number / location of service 
penetrations. The applicant should also be advised to contact Environmental Health 
to discuss the above. In addition, we would recommend that this is brought to the 
attention of the Building Control officer. 

Should any information come to light during the demolition or construction works that 
indicates the presence, or the possible presence of, ‘made ground’ or of 
contaminated soils, then this should be brought to the attention of the Environmental 
Health Service. 

Any excavated material is to be disposed in the appropriate manner and not to be 
reused on site, unless proven to be 'free' from chemical contamination. 

Note to Applicant:  It is considered that, subject to compliance with the conditions and 
any obligations attached to this permission, the proposed development is acceptable 
because it will not materially harm the character of the area, the amenity of 
neighbours or highway safety and it is in accordance with the policies and proposals 
of the development plan, as listed below, and after due regard to all other relevant 
material considerations the local planning authority is of the opinion that permission 
should be granted.

The following development plan policies are relevant to this decision and the 
conditions attached to it: 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011, saved Policy [59.BE].

26



Under the Town and Country Planning [Fees for Applications and Deemed 
Applications][Amendment][England] Regulation 2008, a fee is now required for 
Discharge of Condition Applications. 
N.B. Conditions not fully discharged, invalidate the planning permission. 

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Caldwell, Grajewski, 
Hughes and Olson. 

Description of application 

1. This application seeks approval for alterations and enlargement of the present 
single storey bungalow to form a two storey 5/6 bedroom chalet style dwelling. 
The works include raising the ridge height to provide first floor accommodation 
within the new roof space, including three dormer windows to the front and one 
to the rear, as well as a two storey extension to the rear. 

Site area 

2. Approximately 926 square metres. 

Topography 

3. The frontage of the site is relatively flat and level but the ground level does 
slope down gently from the rear elevation of the property towards the rear 
boundary. 

Trees

4. There are a number of sizable trees towards the rear of the site but none on or 
adjacent to the site which would be affected by the proposed works. 

Boundary treatment 

5. The site is open to the front onto Hiltingbury Road, with the rear garden being 
surrounded by 2.0 metre high hedging, as well as mature planting. 

Site characteristics 

6. The property is a late 1950s single storey detached bungalow on a quite 
generous plot with garden to the front and driveway to the side leading to a 
detached single garage at the rear. Behind the dwelling is a quite large and 
mature south facing garden. The property seems to be original in its 
appearance other than a simple lean-to conservatory to the rear. 

27



Character of locality 

7. The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature and made up of a 
mixture of mainly detached single and two storey dwellings of varying designs. 
Some were built as two storey dwellings but many have had loft and roof 
conversions to provide first floor accommodation. The site also backs onto 
Hiltingbury Junior School and a parade of shops is a few doors away to the 
east.

Relevant planning history 

8. While the application property has no real planning history to speak of, other 
than the small conservatory to the rear, the planning history of neighbouring 
properties is of particular relevance in this instance, specifically Nos.101, 103 
& 105 Hiltingbury Road. 

9. No.101 was originally built as a chalet style property in the late 1950s but was 
extended to the rear, including raising the ridgeline to its current height to 
provide more first floor accommodation in 2000 (Z/14737/001). 

10. No.103 is again a late 1950s dwelling but originally built as a single storey 
bungalow. It had a number of single storey additions to the rear before consent 
was granted in 2002 (Z/38393/000) to provide first floor accommodation within 
an enlarged and raised roof. 

11. No.105 was originally very similar in style to the application dwelling, albeit 
without the front gable projection and again built in the late 1950s. Approval for 
a very basic loft conversion was granted in 1995 at appeal (Z/10886/001), 
although was never implemented. Approval was later granted in 2007 
(F/07/59104) for the present extensions to the dwelling, which again included 
raising the ridgeline to provide first floor accommodation and a two storey rear 
addition.

12. Also of some relevance are Nos.99 & 99a Hiltingbury Road which are a pair of 
shops at the end of the main parade which were built in 1960 but have the 
appearance of a chalet style dwelling with first floor accommodation in the roof 
space and dormer windows to the front. It is these properties, as well as the 
alterations which have been undertaken over the past twelve years as 
highlighted above, which have established a pattern of development along this 
stretch of Hiltingbury Road. 

Representations received 

13. Representations have been received from two neighbours at Nos.109 & 111 
Hiltingbury Road who raise a number of concerns. Their main concerns are 
visual intrusion and loss of privacy, light and outlook, as well as impact upon 
the street scene and further loss of bungalows in the area. Some concern has 
also been expressed with regards to devaluation of property. 

Consultation responses 

28



Head of Environmental Health

14.  No objection. Amenity protection conditions recommended and an advisory 
on potential ground contamination.

Chandler’s Ford Parish Council

15. No objection. 

Policy context:  designation applicable to site 

Within Built-Up Area Boundary 
Within Established Residential Area 
Within Special Character Area 

Development plan policies 

Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011): 59.BE  
Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places 
Supplementary Planning Document: Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Character 
Areas – Hiltingbury Road West 
Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 

Planning policy guidance / statement 

16. PPS 1 – Delivering Sustainable Development  

Policy commentary 

17. The above policies combine to form the criteria on which this application will 
be assessed with particular regard to the principle of that proposed, its layout 
and design, impact upon the residential amenity of neighbouring properties, as 
well as upon the street scene and character of this part of the Hiltingbury Road 
West Special Character Area. 

Comment on consultation responses 

18. All comments are noted with recommended conditions included. 

Comment on representations received 

19. A response to the main planning objections is given in more detail below. 
However, with regards to devaluation of property, while an understandable 
concern for those affected, is not a material planning issue and cannot 
therefore be used to approve or refuse an application. 

29



Assessment of proposal: Development plan and / or legislative background 

20. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:  “If 
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the Planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise”.

21. The proposal is considered to comply with the relevant Development Plan 
policies. 

22. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

Principle

23. The application site lies within the urban edge and within an established 
residential area where the basic principle of development is acceptable. Any 
formal planning approval is then based upon the exact nature, design and 
impact of that proposed being considered appropriate and in accordance with 
the relevant Local Plan policies and supplementary planning guidance. 

24. In this instance the main policy is saved Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan which 
requires development to take full and proper account of the context of the site 
including the character and appearance of the locality and be appropriate in 
mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting. It also requires a high 
standard of landscape design, have a satisfactory means of access and layout 
for vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, make provision for refuse and cycle 
storage and avoid unduly impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking 
and loss of privacy, loss of light and loss of outlook, as well as noise and 
fumes.

25. As highlighted above, a number of neighbouring properties have undergone 
the same or very similar extensions and alterations to that currently proposed 
for No.107. The precedent and principle of such a proposal has therefore been 
set and will need to be given considerable weight when making a decision on 
this current planning application. 

Layout & Design

26. The present property is a two bedroom bungalow, albeit with a decent size ‘L’ 
shaped footprint and quite comfortably sized internal accommodation. The 
proposal is to pull the existing lounge forward by 1.9 metres, squaring off the 
footprint a little but still keeping it behind the existing front gable projection. 
The remainder of the existing footprint would provide an enlarged entrance 
hall, dining room and potential sixth bedroom / study. To the rear a 4.3 metre 
deep two storey extension is proposed, which will provide a new kitchen / 
dining / family space which opens onto the garden. This would also include a 
small utility room. 

30



27. At first floor level a new roof would be constructed with raised ridgeline and 
gabled flank elevations. The new ridgeline would be 3.2 metres higher than the 
present ridge but only 20 centimetres higher than the ridgeline of No.105. To 
the front roof slope will be three dormer windows with pitched hipped tops and 
to the rear will be small single dormer window serving a bedroom. Together 
with the new roof would be the first floor of the two storey rear extension. 
Overall this would provide five bedrooms at first floor level, two with en-suites, 
as well as a family bathroom. 

28. While a substantial increase in size compared to the present property, it would 
not amount to an overdevelopment of the application site which retains a very 
good size rear garden, as well as more than sufficient space for the three off-
road parking spaces required for the enlarged dwelling. 

29. In terms of its appearance, when viewed from the front it would not be an 
unattractive property, having simple proportions and well positioned dormer 
windows. Although good quality materials will be very important to ensure that 
it has a satisfactory and high quality appearance. The rear extension is a little 
less attractive but still acceptable in design terms and less fussy than the rear 
projection to No.105. 

Residential Amenity

30. The Council’s ‘Quality Places’ Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
provides guidance on residential amenity issues and sets out what is and is 
not acceptable. The main consideration is to ensure that windows serving main 
habitable rooms of neighbouring properties are not unduly affected by 
proposed developments. The main concerns raised by objectors with regards 
to residential amenity are overlooking, loss of light and visual intrusion or 
outlook.

31. With regards to overlooking and loss of privacy, there are no habitable room 
windows of either neighbouring property which would be overlooked by that 
proposed. There will inevitably be some overlooking of neighbouring gardens 
from the new first floor windows, something that is generally hard to avoid in 
most urban and suburban situations but the SPD does say that areas close to 
a dwelling should be given the most privacy, as this is where patio areas tend 
to be placed. In this instance the first floor windows are far enough away from 
the boundaries of the site and located in such a position that there will be no 
adverse overlooking of either neighbouring garden and certainly no worse than 
has been accepted in the approval given for No.105 Hiltingbury Road. 

32. While the proposed works will result in a substantial increase in size, the 
orientation, proximity and position of the resulting dwelling in comparison to its 
neighbours means that there will be no overshadowing of any habitable room 
windows or any adverse impact upon their outlook. While the increased mass 
and scale of the dwelling will be perceived from neighbouring gardens, that 
proposed meets the requirements of the SPD and will again be no greater than 
that which has been accepted for No.105. 

31



33. In terms of impact upon the residential amenity of neighbouring properties, the 
application is considered to be acceptable and to accord with the requirements 
of saved Policy 59.BE and the ‘Quality Places’ SPD. 

Street Scene & Area Character

34. Although the row of properties from the shops to the school entrance were all 
originally lower pitched bungalows, that original character has changed over 
the course of time, as it has along many sections of Hiltingbury Road. Many of 
the original single storey bungalows built in the 1950s have now had loft 
conversions or been turned into chalet style dwellings. This evolution of the 
road is not a recent change but something which has been ongoing for many 
years, although it has become a little more prevalent of late as more families 
move into the area. 

35. The concerns of objectors that the original character of this section of the road 
will be lost if developments such as that proposed are allowed to continue are 
noted and understood. However, the issue to be considered is whether that 
proposed is or is not acceptable in terms of its visual impact upon the street 
and the character of the area. In order to assess this, the proposal must be 
judged on what surrounds it, or its host environment, as well as recent 
planning approvals where appropriate. 

36. As has already been mentioned above, as an individual design the 
appearance of the resulting dwelling is considered to be acceptable. It’s overall 
height, form, scale and design follows that of neighbouring properties which 
have already been converted, particularly when viewed from the street and in 
officer’s opinion will fit in well with the current street scene. 

37. The issue to consider therefore is whether there has been such a significant 
change in terms of the host environment or planning policy since the planning 
approvals for the neighbouring properties were given so as to make that now 
proposed unacceptable. In planning policy terms there has certainly been no 
change since the approval was given for No.105 and in officer’s opinion there 
has been no real significant change to the nature or character of the immediate 
area. It would therefore be very difficult to justify a refusal of the application on 
the grounds of its appearance or visual impact on Hiltingbury Road or the 
character of the Hiltingbury Road West Special Character Area. 

Other material considerations 

38. It is considered that there are no other material considerations to warrant a 
decision otherwise than in accordance with the Development Plan and / or 
legislative background. 

Conclusion

39. While the concerns and objections of neighbours are noted, the proposed 
alterations and extensions to the application dwelling are considered to be 
acceptable and to meet all of the necessary requirements of the relevant 

32



Supplementary Planning Documents and saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011). It is for this reason that the 
application is recommended for approval subject to the conditions set out 
above.

33



Mast

79

Hiltingbury

27

43

41

Tennis Court

95

67a

Hiltingbury

99a

67

Tennis Court

49.4m

17

146

Club

School

29

75

50.0m

55

School

50.0m

ayground

Hall

77

Infant

99

111

115

160

97

172

101

HILTINGBURY ROAD

45

Junior

© Crown copyright and database rights (2012) Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

Scale:

Map Ref:

Date:

1:1250

06/03/2012

SU4322SW

Title:

34



CHANDLER'S FORD & HILTINGBURY Wednesday 21 March 2012 Case Officer Gary Osmond 

SITE: 6 Wychwood Grove, Chandler's Ford, Eastleigh, SO53 1FQ 

A\7 Ref. F/12/70185 Received: 13/12/2011  (07/02/2012) 

APPLICANT: Mr A Dilworth 

PROPOSAL: Two storey side extension including re-sited single garage

AMENDMENTS: None 
RECOMMENDATION:

REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION 

CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 

(1)  The first floor element of the proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its 
resulting siting, height, width and depth would introduce a feature of unwelcome 
prominence within the existing street scene, to the detriment of the visual 
amenity and character of this section of Wychwood Grove. The proposal is 
therefore considered to be contrary to saved Policy 59.BE of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011). 

(2)  The first floor element of the proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its 
height, width, depth and proximity to No.2 Wychwood Grove would result in an 
adverse impact to the outlook from the adjacent first floor bedroom window of 
this property, to the detriment of the residential amenity of its occupiers. The 
proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to saved Policy 59.BE of the 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011). 

(3)  Insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate that the resulting 
development can adequately accommodate the three off-road parking spaces 
required to meet the requirements of the adopted Supplementary Planning 
Document 'Residential Parking Standards' and contrary to saved Policy 59.BE of 
the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011). 

Note to Applicant: This application has been assessed based on the following 
submitted plans: Loc 01, 11-WG-SK01, 11-WG-SP, 11-WG-P01,11-WG-PO2, 
11-WG-EXE.

Report:

This application has been referred to Committee by Councillors Caldwell, Grajewski, 
Hughes and Olson. 

Agenda Item 11

35



Description of application

1. The application seeks approval for the construction of a two storey side 
extension, which includes a rear projection, as well as repositioning the 
existing single garage further forward. This would provide enlarged ground 
floor accommodation in the form of an enlarged kitchen/diner, with utility room 
and family room to the rear opening onto the garden. At first floor this would 
provide a fifth bedroom to be used as the master bedroom with en-suite 
bathroom and walk-in wardrobe. 

Site area 

2. Approximately 350 square metres. 

Residential development (net) 

3. No change from the current 29 dwellings per hectare. 

Topography 

4. The site is generally flat and level. 

Trees

5. There is a line of protected trees which run along the rear boundaries of the 
Wychwood Grove and Kingsway properties but none will be affected by the 
proposed works. 

Boundary treatment 

6. The site is open to the front onto Wychwood Grove and has 1.8 – 2.0 metre 
timber fences to all rear garden boundaries. 

Site characteristics 

7. The application property is an early 1970s detached two storey dwelling with 
modest front garden and reasonable size private rear garden. To the side is a 
driveway with car port and single garage all under a flat roof canopy attached 
to the side of the house. 

Character of locality 

8. The surrounding area is residential in nature and made up of mainly detached 
two storey dwellings on comfortable sized plots. The neighbouring Wychwood 
Grove and Kingsway Gardens properties all date from the 1960s and 70s, 
where as those along Kingsway are generally from the 1920s and 30s. 

36



Relevant planning history 

9. Other than the original planning approval for the dwelling in 1971 there is no 
record of any further planning history. 

Representations received 

10. At the time of writing a total of six representations have been received, all 
objecting to the proposal. The issues raised are as follows: 

 Out of character with the Wychwood Grove 
 Impact upon the street scene 
 Would interrupt spacing between properties 
 Insufficient off-road parking for the enlarged dwelling 
 Overdevelopment of the site 
 Would set a precedent 
 Previous refusal at No.10 
 Loss of outlook and visual intrusion 
 Loss of light 

Consultation responses 

Head of Transportation & Engineering

11. Objection on the grounds of insufficient parking. A 4+ bedroom dwelling 
requires three off-road parking spaces but only two are proposed, which 
includes the garage. However, the garage is less than the 3.0 x 6.0 metre 
internal dimensions required and cannot therefore be considered as a parking 
space. Therefore only one space would be provided for the enlarged dwelling. 

12. However, there is scope to enlarge the proposed garage and to provide an 
additional parking space on part of the front garden.  

Chandler’s Ford Parish Council

13. No objection. 

Policy context:  designation applicable to site 

 Within Built-Up Area Boundary 
 Within Established Residential Area 

Development plan policies 

 Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011): 59.BE  
 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places 
 Supplementary Planning Document: Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury 

Character Areas – Hiltingbury Road West 
 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 

37



Planning policy guidance / statement 

14. PPS 1 – Delivering Sustainable Development  

Policy commentary 

15. The above policies combine to form the criteria on which this application will 
be assessed with particular regard to the principle of that proposed, its layout 
and design, impact upon the residential amenity of neighbouring properties, 
parking, as well as upon the street scene and character of this part of the 
Wychwood Grove. 

Comment on consultation responses 

16. Comments are noted and responded to where appropriate below. 

Comment on representations received 

17. All comments are noted and responded to where appropriate below. However, 
with regards to setting a precedent, while a valid concern, this cannot be used 
as a reason to refuse a planning application. 

Assessment of proposal: Development plan and / or legislative background 

18. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states:  “If 
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purpose of any 
determination to be made under the Planning Acts the determination must be 
made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise”.

19. The proposal is considered to conflict with the relevant Development Plan 
policies in that: 

20. In this case policy issues for consideration include: 

Principle

21. The application site lies within the urban edge and within an established 
residential area where the basic principle of development is acceptable. Any 
formal planning approval is then based upon the exact nature, design and 
impact of that proposed being considered appropriate and in accordance with 
the relevant Local Plan policies and supplementary planning guidance. 

22. In this instance the main policy is saved Policy 59.BE of the Local Plan which 
requires development to take full and proper account of the context of the site, 
including the character and appearance of the locality and be appropriate in 
mass, scale, materials, layout, design and siting. It also requires a high 
standard of landscape design, have a satisfactory means of access and layout 
for vehicles, cyclist and pedestrians, make provision for refuse and cycle 

38



storage and avoid unduly impacting on neighbouring uses through overlooking 
and loss of privacy, loss of light and loss of outlook, as well as noise and 
fumes.

Layout & Design

23. The current dwelling is made up of two parts, the main two storey dwelling 
with its simple rectangular footprint and low pitched roof, and a single storey 
detached garage and car port to the side, both covered by a flat roof which is 
attached to the main house. Access to the rear garden is between the house 
and the garage but is covered by the flat roof. The main entrance to the house 
is to the side, also covered by the flat roof. 

24. The application proposes to pull the garage forward into the position of the 
current car port and form a new main entrance between it and the house. The 
space which originally housed the garage would then become a dining space 
attached to the kitchen, as well as a small utility room. Behind this would be 
the ground floor of a new two storey projection into the rear garden, which 
would become a family room. Above this, and what was the garage, would be 
a new master suite, with en-suite bathroom and walk-in wardrobe. As well as 
the extension there would be some minor internal changes, such as 
repositioning the stairs but this does not require planning consent. 

25. Externally the extension is very simple in its design and appearance, but this 
does generally follow current style of the dwelling. There is some interest to 
the rear projection’s fenestration but this would not be seen from any public 
vantage points. There is some slightly awkward detailing and junctions 
between new and old but overall the design when looked in isolation is not so 
bad as to justify a refusal on the grounds of its impact upon the application 
dwelling, although some improvements could be made. 

Residential Amenity

26. The main issues with regards to residential amenity are the proposed 
extension’s impact upon the privacy, outlook and light to neighbouring 
dwellings. Due to the relationship of the application dwelling in relation to its 
immediate neighbours, there will be no unacceptable loss of privacy. There is 
a side window at first floor level on the proposed extension which could 
potentially overlook the garden of No.8 Wychwood Grove but this could be 
conditioned to be obscure glazed should planning approval be granted. 

27. With regards to loss of light, while the proposed side addition will most likely 
affect light to the high level side windows of No.4’s garage, this is not a main 
habitable room and cannot therefore be used as a reason for refusal. With 
regards to the first floor front bedroom window of No.4, while there may well be 
some loss of sunlight at certain times of the day and year, it would not be so 
bad as to warrant a reason for refusal. 

28. However, the proximity of the flank wall of the proposed extension to this first 
floor bedroom window will be much closer than the present dwelling and 

39



overlap the main front elevation of No.4 by 3.8 metres. While it would be hard 
to describe this as overbearing, it will certainly have an adverse effect upon the 
outlook from this window to the detriment of the amenity of occupiers of No.4 
Wychwood Grove. 

Parking

29. Presently the site has off-road parking for three vehicles, one in the garage, 
one under the car port and one on the drive. The proposed extensions and 
alterations will reduce this to two off-road spaces, albeit that the garage is 
slightly under sized to be counted as a space, which is not sufficient to meet 
the minimum requirement of three spaces for a four plus bedroom dwelling as 
set out in the Council’s adopted ‘Residential Parking Standards’ 
Supplementary Planning Document. This lack of information to demonstrate 
that sufficient off-road parking can be provided is recommended as a reason 
for refusal. However, it is likely that with an increase in the internal dimensions 
of the proposed garage and enlargement of the driveway / hard standing to the 
front of the dwelling, that the three spaces required can be provided, although 
it may be a little tight. 

Street Scene & Area Character

30. The main concern raised by objectors is the impact of the proposed extension 
upon the visual appearance and character of the street. This concern is shared 
by officers. 

31. A particular feature of this section of Wychwood Grove, especially between 
No.4 and No.14 is the spacing between properties, or more specifically the 
open gap at first floor level above each dwelling’s flat roof car port / garage. 
This gives a very regular and quite pleasant rhythm to the street scene and 
gives quite an open feel despite the actual close proximity of each dwelling to 
its neighbour. Any interruption to this rhythm will have an adverse impact upon 
the visual appearance and character of the street scene. This was the reason 
that a proposed side extension to No.10 was refused in 2002 (Z/38417/000). 

32. While the proposed ground floor alterations and the ground floor element of 
the rear projection are considered acceptable, as they will have little impact 
upon the street scene or any neighbouring dwelling, it is the proposed first floor 
element which is of concern. This first floor addition will not only fill in the 
current gap between the application dwelling and No.4 but will also increase 
the visual bulk of the application dwelling when looking south down Wychwood 
Grove. This is because No.4 sits well back from the front of No.6, to the extent 
that nearly all of the side elevation of No.6 is visible from the street. Any further 
addition to the side of No.6 will therefore make the dwelling appear 
significantly larger than it does at present and give the impression that the 
house has been squeezed into its plot. 

33. The applicant has highlighted a number of properties both in Wychwood 
Grove and Kingsway Gardens which have been extended. These have been 
reviewed by officers but none of the examples given are felt to be directly 

40



comparable to No.6 in terms of their positions and importance within the street 
scene or their impact upon the character of the street. 

34. Although sympathetic to the applicant’s desire to provide more 
accommodation, it is felt that to provide it in the form proposed would have an 
adverse and unacceptable impact upon the visual appearance and character 
of this section of Wychwood Grove, contrary to saved Policy 59.BE of the 
adopted Local Plan. 

Other material considerations 

35. It is considered that there are no other material considerations to warrant a 
decision otherwise than in accordance with the Development Plan and / or 
legislative background. 

Conclusion

36. For the reasons given above, the application is recommended for refusal. 

41



2

90

80

1a

71

23

59

KINGSWAY GARDENS

51

2a

1

17

50

61

8

4

18
a

57

2

40

20

49

20a

10

30

59a

31

13

16

83

KI
N

G
SW

A
Y

20

52

81

41

1

18
b

78

WYCHWOOD GROVE

3

© Crown copyright and database rights (2012) Ordnance Survey (LA100019622)

Scale:

Map Ref:

Date:

1:1250

06/03/2012

SU4421NW

Title:

42



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
AC780AM – Community Grants 2012/13  

CHANDLER’S FORD & HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Wednesday 21 March 2012 

COMMUNITY GRANTS 2012/2013 

Report of the Area Co-ordinator  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that grants of £2,600 be approved as recommended in Appendix 
3 to this report. 
 

Summary 
 
This report recommends that £2,600 be allocated to local voluntary organisations 
operating in the Chandler’s Ford & Hiltingbury local area for 2012/13.   

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 2 Local Government Act 2000. 

 

Introduction 

1. Grants are awarded each year to voluntary organisations and community 
groups.  Grants are awarded up to a maximum amount of £1,000.  Priority is 
given to applications which promote the themes of the Corporate Strategy and 
reflect the priorities of each Local Area Committee. 

2. The specific criteria for awarding grants is detailed in Appendix 1. 

3. In line with Council policy all community groups are being encouraged to sign 
up to the Eastleigh Community Compact.  As part of this good practice a 
grants appeal procedure is now in place and attached for information as 
Appendix 2. 

4. To ensure consistency, the standard grant has been set at £200 but this has 
been enhanced where the application relates closely to the area priorities and 
needs as identified in the 20-20 vision. 

Local Area Grant Applications 

5. Applications have been received from 14 voluntary organisations and 
community groups.  Funding is being sought by these organisations for a 
range of purposes including general running costs, transport costs, and the 
purchase of various items of equipment.  A list of the applicant organisations 
and details of their requests is attached to this report (Appendix 3). 

Agenda Item 13

43



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
AC780AM – Community Grants 2012/13  

Local Area Committee Grants budget 

6. Each Local Area Committee has a budget for Community Grants.  The 
allocation available for Chandler’s Ford & Hiltingbury is £2,970.   

7. Appendix 3 outlines the recommended level of grant for each of the applicant 
organisations.  The limited finances available, against the number of 
applications received means that either all grants are reduced or some bids 
will fail.  It is considered appropriate in the current economic climate to sustain 
a reasonable level of grant where possible and to reject applications from 
organisations such as play groups who have the ability to operate 
commercially and increase income through their fees. 

8. Whilst the level of financial support we are able to offer community 
organisations is relatively modest, Members will note that we are able to direct 
organisations to other potential sources of funding.  In addition, major capital 
expenditure may attract funding from the Council’s Community Investment 
Programme where the resultant asset has a clear benefit to the wider 
community. 

Financial Implications 

9. There are no revenue implications associated with this report as adequate 
budget provision has been made in local devolved budgets.  ` 

Risk Assessment 

10. There are no identified risks associated with this report.  All approved grants 
are subject to submission of monitoring information. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. The report complies with our policy to ensure that the voluntary and 
community sector are treated fairly and equitably.  Equality impact 
assessments on individual grants applications have not been made. 

Conclusion 

12. The recommendations made in this report complement adopted corporate 
priorities and strategies as well as this Committee’s local priorities.  Subject to 
the approval of this Committee, grant awards could be made in April of this 
year.  The Area Co-ordinator will undertake appropriate monitoring of grants 
to ensure any specific conditions are adhered to. 

ANDY MILNER 
Area Co-ordinator 

 
 

Date: 12 March 2012 
Contact Officer: Andy Milner 
Tel No: 023 8068 8438 
e-mail: andy.milner@eastleigh.gov.uk 

44



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
AC780AM – Community Grants 2012/13  

Appendices Attached: 3 
Report No: AC780AM 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following documents disclose facts or matters on which this report or an 
important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in the 
preparation of this report: 

12 Grant applications received and held on file for further inspection.  Information 
available from Andy Milner, Area Co-ordinator. 

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank



GRNTGUIDANCE09  

Appendix 1 
Guidance Notes for Community Grants 

 
Who can apply? 
 
• Community groups, voluntary organisations, trusts, friendly societies, social enterprises and 

community interest companies provided that, in all cases, their objectives are charitable as 
defined by the Charity Act 2006. 

 
• Seek to improve the quality of life of local people.  Priority is given to organisations whose aims 

reflect the Council’s priorities of promoting health, prosperity, the environment, community 
development and community involvement. 

 
• Operate entirely or partly in the Borough. 
 
• Provide a service directly, offer advice/information or promote self help. 
 
• Have a wide community benefit and are open to anyone who could benefit. 
 
• Operate on a non-profit making basis. 
 
• Have a constitution or set of rules defining its aims, objectives and procedures. 
 
• Have a bank or building society account in the name of the organisation which requires at least 

two signatures on each cheque. 
 
• Can provide its most recent approved and signed accounts. 
 
What can they be used for? 
 
• Purchase of equipment or materials 
 
• Contribution towards running costs. 
 
• Funding specific projects. 
 
• Development of the organisation. 
 
How much are the grants? 
 
There is no minimum.  There is a usual maximum of £1,000 per organisation for borough wide 
groups and £500 for local community groups. 
 
Who deals with the grants? 
 
Grant forms are available from the Area Co-ordination Team at the Borough Council.  Applications 
are considered by the relevant Local Area Committee(s) and you will be informed of their decision 
during February 2010. 
 
When to apply? 
 
The application forms need to be returned by Friday 18 NOVEMBER 2011. 
 

47



GRNTGUIDANCE09  

 
Screening Volunteers and Employees 
 
Screening is used here to mean checking if someone has a criminal record. It is one way of reducing the 
risk of recruiting volunteers or staff who may be unsuitable to work with children or other vulnerable people. 
 
All organisations can ask on their application forms if volunteers or staff have a criminal record. This is vital 
where volunteers will be working with vulnerable people and something to consider for volunteers going 
into people’s homes or with unsupervised access to money. 
 
Ex-offenders normally have the right not to reveal spent (old) convictions. But where work involves contact 
with vulnerable people, organisations can require applicants to declare spent convictions too. Vulnerable 
people includes people under 18 or over 65, people with a mental or physical disability or chronic illness, 
alcohol or drug misuses. 
 
The Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) conducts what was previously called police checks and these are now 
re-named ‘disclosures’. There are three types of disclosures: 

• Enhanced disclosures - 
for posts involving substantial contact with children or vulnerable adults. 

• Standard Disclosures - 
for posts involving regular contact with vulnerable people.  

• Basic Disclosure – 
available for anyone and will be issued to individuals directly. 

In order to get enhanced and standard disclosures organisations need either to a) register with the CRB 
direct or b) approach an ‘umbrella’ organisation who is  registered as an ‘umbrella’ organisation and can 
process applications on their behalf.  
 

The Children Act 
 
The Children Act 1989 in seeking to protect children, places certain responsibilities on childcare agencies. 
However the Home Office and Department of Health advise that these responsibilities do not extend to 
requiring that everyone in contact with children are screened. Those who have unsupervised contact or 
regular contact with children should be screened. 
 
Organisations which are for under 8’s for more than two hours a day more than four times a year are 
required to register with OFSTED. 
 
Useful Addresses 
Criminal Records Bureau  One Community   OFSTED 
PO Box 91    16 Romsey Road   Regional Office 
Liverpool    EASTLEIGH    1-2 Floors, Dukes Court 
LO9 2UH    SO50 9AL    Dukes Street 
http:/www/crb.gov.uk   Tel: 02380 902400   Woking  GU21 5ED   
          Tel: 0845 6014771 
 
Organisations working with any vulnerable people including children should ensure they have appropriate 
policies. Advice and information about this and other policies is available from One Community. 
 
Who deals with the grants? 
 
Please return the completed form to the Area Co-ordination Team at Eastleigh Borough Council. If you 
have any queries contact: 
 
 Helen Coleman 

Eastleigh Borough Council 
Civic Offices, Leigh Road 
Eastleigh,   SO50 9YN 
Tel. 023 8068 8017 Email: helen.coleman@eastleigh.gov.uk  

48



AC780AMAppen2 

 
APPENDIX 2 
 
COMPACT 
THE FUNDING GUIDE APPEALS PROCEDURE 
Community Grants 
Organisations wishing to appeal against a decision should put their concerns in 
writing to the relevant Local Area Co-ordinator for Local Area Committee grants or 
Community Development Manager for Borough-wide grants. 
 
A response will be sent to the organisation within 5 working days. If further 
investigation is required then the organisation would be informed about how long this 
will take. 
 
If the organisation is not satisfied with the response they should put their concerns in 
writing to the Chair of the relevant Local Area Committee for Local Area Committee 
grants or the Executive Councillor for Social Policy for Borough-wide grants. Their 
decision would be final. 
 
Grounds for Appeal 
The Council not adhering to published deadlines for applications. 
Inconsistency in the amount of grant awarded for similar applications. 
 

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank



CFH GRANT AWARDS 2012/13

REF ORGANISATION PURPOSE/REQUEST
AMOUNT 

REQUESTED COMMENTS
AMOUNT 

RECOMMENDED Last Year

1
2nd Ramalley Chandler's Ford 
Scout Group Trailer for camping £500 £200 0

2
Winchester & Eastleigh Duke of 
Edinburgh Local Award Comm

Maps, compasses, camping equipment, 
award ceremondy £500 Borough wide N/A

3 Girlguiding UK Chandler's Ford Div Security lighting outside bldg £500 £200 200

4
Chameleon Theatre Company
of Chandler's Ford Upgrading sound system £500 £300 300

5
Chandler's Ford District Explorer
Scouts six triangias for expeditions £300 £200 200

6
CF Scout Assoc - Cranbury Park
Sub Committee Improve facilities at camp site £500 £200 200

7 Age Concern Chandler's Ford Replacement of security door £500 £300 300

8
Royal British Legion - Eastleigh
& Chandler's Ford Running costs,band costs & rembrance £500 Borough wide N/A

9 Chandler's Ford Good Neighbours
Telephone, postage, leaflets, mileage 
cost £300 £300 300

10 Parkview Community Playgroup Computer IT equipment £500 £0 300
11 Springboard Employment & Trng Computer software £500 £300 300
12 Peter Pan Pre School Room dividers, wireless magnifiers £450 £0 300
13 Sunday Lunch Club Toward community bus & Xmas lunch £300-500 £300 0
14 Senior Citizens Sunshine Club Community buses, entertainment, rent £500 £300 0

TOTAL £6,050 £2,600

Page 1 CFH GRANTS LIST 2012-13

51



52

This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
AC787AM – CIP 2012-13 
 
 
  

CHANDLER’S FORD & HILTINGBURY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Wednesday 21 March 2012 

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2012/13 

Report of the Area Co-ordinator 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

It is recommended that: 

(1) Progress on active schemes be noted;  

(2) Contributions be allocated to the schemes detailed in paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
this report; and 

(3) Revised priorities detailed in Appendix 1 be approved. 
 

Summary 
 
This report recommends utilisation of developer’s contributions in key areas as well as 
summarising progress on active schemes and setting out future priorities for the area. 

Statutory Powers 
 
S106 and Schedule 1 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
S101, S111 and S152 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

Introduction 

1. The Community Investment Programme (CIP) is the cornerstone of the capital 
works programme.  Funded mainly from developers’ contributions it enables 
the prioritisation of projects that help develop a sustainable community. 

2. Appendix 2 attached illustrates the extent of active projects and summarises 
the level of unallocated resources which may be summarised as follows: 

(a) Unallocated resources (no restriction on purpose) £793.  It would seem 
prudent to protect this allocation to meet any unforeseen overspends 
that may arise on other capital projects. 

 In addition, the following reflects additional contributions available as a 
result of recent development in the area.  Members will notice that the 
available contributions have fallen significantly over the last year and 
this largely reflects the reduced activity in the construction industry as a 

Agenda Item 14

53



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
AC787AM – CIP 2012-13 
 
 
  

result of the recession.  It is clear that there will be far less opportunity 
for funding new projects in the near future. 

(b) Sustainable Transport contributions £1,711*; 
(c) Unallocated Community Infrastructure £27,714**; 
(d) Unallocated Public Open Space and Play Provision £7,984; 
(e) Unallocated District Park /Playing Field contributions £1,475; 
(f) Unallocated Public Open Space Wildlife Sites £94; 
(g) Unallocated Public Art £4,517 

 
*   A further £10,832  relates to development that has yet to start 
** A further £2,255 relates to development that has yet to start.   
    All figures prior to allocations of developer’s contributions as stated below. 
 

3. It is important to appreciate that there is also a capacity limit on the Council to 
 deliver projects from five competing Local Area Committees.  Once a priority 
 is funded, the first task for the Area Co-ordinator is to negotiate with the 
 appropriate Head of Service to determine how and when the scheme can be 
 built into existing and planned work programmes.  The option to externalise 
 the work is generally considered as part of that process but Members should 
 appreciate that this route often involves a considerable overhead in terms of 
 the client role and thus can deliver less value for money. 

Progress on Existing Schemes 

4. Public Art Feature outside The Arch, Station Lane.  The selected artist has 
now met with Centrestage Youth Productions and the designs are being 
developed for further consultation. 

5. Fryern Recreation Ground.  The handover of the refurbished pavilion has now 
taken place and it is intended to use the venue for the next Local Area 
Committee meeting in June.  The half pipe and lighting is on order. 

6. Hiltingbury Lakes.  The first phase of the project has been completed with tree 
clearance work around the lake.  The second phase, involving bank 
restoration and silt removal is scheduled to take place in the spring subject to 
agreement on the overall project plan. 

7. Trees.  New roadside trees have now been planted in Bodycoats Road and 
Oakmount Road.  The trees planted on the open space north of Hiltingbury 
Road have been relocated to Hiltingbury Recreation Ground. 

New Schemes & Priorities 

8. Footpath.  The existing footpath from Mount Drive to the open space behind 
Osborne Drive is very informal and quite difficult to negotiate.  Laying a proper 
path in Breedon gravel, of a width suitable to prevent motorised access, is 
estimated at £1,530.  The solution would make the open space more 
accessible for local people and provide a route for cyclist that avoids the 
gradient otherwise experienced along Oakmount Road.  This scheme could 
be funded immediately from DC F/09/66082 (4 Mount Drive). 

54



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
AC787AM – CIP 2012-13 
 
 
  

9. Ramalley Car Park.  A number of complaints have been received about the 
state of the car park which serves both the countryside site and the cemetery.  
It is felt that a tarmac car park would not be in keeping with the more informal 
ambience of the countryside site but a Breedon gravel solution would be both 
durable, aesthetically appealing and a relatively economic solution.  The 
estimated cost is £40,000 plus £5,000 for feasibility work.  There are presently 
no funds to finance this scheme which will need to be added to the current list 
of priorities. 

10. Railing in Wellbrooke Gardens (north of South Millers Dale).  Concerns 
have been raised locally about young people cycling down the footpath from 
Rusland Close.  A crash barrier would help to avoid concerns about them 
cycling straight into the traffic.  Estimated cost £500.  This could be funded 
immediately using DC F/09/64799 (re 4a Hursley Road). 

11. Meon Crescent Cycling Route.  This has been successfully completed and 
is well used by Toynbee students.  Unfortunately they have started to use a 
short cut through a private garage block.  Further work, following consultation 
with local residents is required to formalise access or fence off the area to 
prevent unauthorised entry.  Estimated cost £4,694,.  This scheme could be 
funded immediately using DC F/06/57044 (136-138 Bournemouth Road) 
£4,694.68. 

12. Multi Use Games Area at Hiltingbury Recreation Ground.  This is a long 
standing commitment to the young people of Chandler’s Ford to provide a 
kick-about area in the youth zone at Hiltingbury recreation ground.  There may 
not be sufficient funds to progress this scheme but Members are invited to 
reserve existing contributions toward the overall cost.  It is recommended to 
reserve the following contributions – OS F/10/68218  & DC F/10/68218  (54 
Merdon Avenue) £2,893.91 & £5,268.13, OS 39232/2 (24-28 Hursley Road) 
£474.77, DC 31611/1 (87/89 Winchester Road) £1,935.28, DC 28566/2 (37 
Merdon Ave) £2,303.95, DC F/08/63689 (Stewart House, Sycamore Avenue) 
£3,417.82 and DC F/11/69039 (Flat, Kingfisher House, 2-12 Hursley Road) 
£1,596.50, OS 40195 (170 Bournemouth Road) £616.90, OS F/07/59400 (108 
Chalvington Road) £774.37, OS O/05/55740 & DC O/O5/55740 (37-43 
Bournemouth Road) £183.69 & £217.76, OS F/09/66082 (4 Mount Drive) 
£803.80 and OS F/07/60634 & DC F/07/60634 (Fordington Villas, Station 
Lane) £2,420.97 & £4,552.25.  This will secure contributions of £27,459 
against an estimated cost of £40,000. 

Financial Implications 

13. There are no additional revenue costs arising from this report.   

Risk Assessment 

14. The Council has adopted a relatively formal procedure to project management 
based around PRINCE2 methodology.  As part of the project initiation 
exercise, risk analysis and contingency planning is explored.  Documents 
evidencing the level of risk and detailing appropriate actions will be approved 

55



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
AC787AM – CIP 2012-13 
 
 
  

by the relevant programme board in advance of any expenditure being 
committed. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

15. Projects throughout the Community Investment Programme aim to promote 
equality and diversity. 

Conclusion 

16. The development experienced in Chandler’s Ford in recent years has placed 
a considerable demand on the facilities available to local residents.  
Legislation supports the view that developers contribute to the extension and 
improvement of those facilities and the Members are invited to approve the 
recommendations contained within this report which will directly benefit local 
residents. 

ANDY MILNER 
Area Co-ordinator 

 
Date: 12 March 2012 
Contact Officer: Andy Milner 
Tel No: 023 8068 8438 
e-mail: andy.milner@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 2 
Report No: AC787AM  
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: 

 
 
None 

56



AC787AMAPP1 1

APPENDIX 1 
Community Investment Programme 

CFH Priorities 
 
Project Amount 

sought 
Rationale / Justification Areas benefiting DC 

contributions 
to be used 

Priority 1     
Public Open Space and Play Provision     
     
Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) at 
Hiltingbury Recreation Ground including 
kick wall 
 
(Sports Pitches) 

£40,000 To further enhance the facilities at 
Hiltingbury Recreation Ground and to 
meet a commitment to provide more 
facilities for young people in the area 

Whole of CFH 
area 

 

Play Area at Lincoln Valley £100,000 Playground equipment approaching 
end of useful life 

Chandler’s Ford 
East, Hiltingbury 
East 

 

     
Community Infrastructure     
Outdoor fitness equipment at Hiltingbury 
Recreation Ground 

£15,000 To provide a complementary range of 
recreational activities.  The inclusion 
of such equipment would enable older 
residents to have a facility at the 
Recreation Ground that they can 
participate in.  

Whole of CFH 
area 

 

Improved skateboard facilities at 
Hiltingbury Recreation Ground 

£15,000 The skateboard facilities are well 
used at Hiltingbury but are in need of 
renovation, repair and updating. 

Whole of CFH 
area 

 

57



AC787AMAPP1 2

 
Project Amount 

sought 
Rationale / Justification Areas benefiting DC 

contributions 
to be used 

Scout Hut & Girl Guides building at 
Ramalley 

£100,000 Existing facilities are very old and 
environmentally uneconomic to run 

Whole of 
Chandler’s Ford 
and Hiltingbury 

Referred to in 
s016 
agreement 
with Drapers 

     
 
Public Art 

    

Art Feature at entrance to Parish Jubilee 
Gardens 

£15,000 To provide a welcoming entrance to 
the refurbished gardens 

Chandler’s Ford 
& Hiltingbury East

 

     
Environmental improvements and 
Landscaping 

    

Landscaping of open space between 
Oakmount Road and M3 motorway 

£50,000    

Replacement Public Conveniences at 
Central Precinct 

    

New car park at Ramalley (Breedon 
Gravel) 

£40,000 To alleviate flooding for visitors to 
Ramalley copse, the cemetery and 
the scouts/ guide huts. 

Chandler’s Ford 
& Hiltingbury 

 

Roundabout at junction of Winchester and 
Hiltingbury Roads 
 
(Sustainable Integrated Transport) 

£60,000 Emerged as recommendation of 
Atkins Study in 2004 and approved by 
LAC.  To be considered as part of 
traffic calming along Winchester Road 
and as integral part of safer route to 
school (i.e. incorporating protected 
cycling lane) 

Hiltingbury East 
and West, 
Ampfield, 
Otterbourne, 
Velmore and 
Valley Park).   

 

Highway Priorities     
Pedestrian Refuge Bournemouth Road / 
Chalvington Road 

£1,800    

58



AC787AMAPP1 3

 
Project Amount 

sought 
Rationale / Justification Areas benefiting DC 

contributions 
to be used 

Pedestrian Crossing Hursley Road to 
station 

£1,900 Improve access to station   

Templars Way footway link  Sustainable transport for users of 
business park 

  

Bollards by Picador Vauxhall  To deter cars riding pavement before 
left turn 

  

Hiltingbury Road pedestrian crossing   Provide safe crossing point to 
Ashdown Rd shops 

  

Winchester Rd footway widening     
Bus shelter at Templars Way     
Bus shelter Opp. ASDA     
Templars Way roundabout  To help clam traffic speeds   
Bus shelter Opp. Constantine Avenue     
Bus shelter Nr. Kings Road     
Hocombe/ Hursley Road junction 
improvements 

 To address longstanding safety 
concerns 

 Consider joint 
funding TVBC 

     
Priority 2     
Public Open Space and Play Provision     
Westmoreland Way play area  £30,000 The existing equipment is nearing the 

end of its useful life, and will shortly 
need to be refurbished or replaced. 

Chandler’s Ford 
East 

 

New Childrens Play Area west of Hursley 
Road 
 
(Local Green Space) 

£50,000 New play area required so as to 
obviate the need for people to cross 
Hursley Road and access play areas 
at Hiltingbury and at Mead Road.  This 
project is subject to us being able to 
identify a suitable site on the west side 
of Hursley Road 

North & South 
Millers Dale 
Station Lane and 
School Lane) 

 

59



AC787AMAPP1 4

 
Project Amount 

sought 
Rationale / Justification Areas benefiting DC 

contributions 
to be used 

Extension to Hiltingbury Pavilion  To enable a meeting room to be built 
(overlooking the tennis courts).  The 
Pavilion will be used for more sport 
(particularly football) over the coming 
years and this would help to offer a 
greater facility for such uses. 

  

     
Highway Priorities     
Traffic Calming at junction of Kingsway / 
Merdon Avenue 
 
(Sustainable Transport) 

£30,000 Dangerous cross roads where both 
minor accidents and speeding 
incidents are not uncommon.  A 
scheme has been designed by the 
Head of Engineering incorporating a 
roundabout and has been approved 
by the local community through 
consultation. 

Catchment area 
of Merdon School 
and Sherborne 
House School 

 

South Millers Dale pedestrian crossing £180,000 To serve residents of South Millers 
Dale 

Chandler’s Ford 
West 

 

Brickfield Lane Cycle Route 
Improvements 

 Convert and widen footway to form 
cycle route as low levels of pedestrian 
activity make this a suitable route to 
be converted. 

  

Bodycoats Road speed reduction 
measures 

 To address concerns of local residents 
regarding speeding  

  

     
Priority 3     
Public Open Space and Play Provision     
     
Lighting and resurfacing of Tennis courts 
at Hiltingbury Recreation Ground  

£40,000 To extend controlled usage in the 
evening, subject to full consultation 
with all interested parties 

Whole of the CFH 
area 

 

60



AC787AMAPP1 5

Project Amount 
sought 

Rationale / Justification Areas benefiting DC 
contributions 
to be used 

Path around eastern edge of Pennine 
Way Recreation Ground 
 
(Local Green Space) 
 

£30,000 To provide circular route around the 
site for dog walkers and to promote 
healthy living. 

Chandler’s Ford 
West 

 

Drainage at Hiltingbury Recreation 
Ground following the completion of The 
Hilt 
 
(District Park) 

£25,000 As part of major redevelopment, there 
are a number of follow-on landscaping 
/ completion works needed. 

Whole of CFH 
area 

 

     
Environmental improvements and 
Landscaping 

    

Lighting at Sutherlands Way 
 
(Community Safety) 

£5,000 To enhance perception of community 
safety and to provide additional 
illumination at the southern bend 
between Prospect Place and Kerry 
Close  

Chandler’s Ford 
West  

 

Lighting between Osborne Close and 
Mount Drive (Community Safety) 

£5,000 To enhance community safety in an 
area used by local residents on foot. 

Chandler’s Ford 
East 

 

     
Highway Priorities     
Cycle route – Hiltingbury Road 
 
(Sustainable Integrated Transport) 

£292,000 Supporting sustainable transport 
initiatives and safe routes to school.   

Thornden 
catchment area 
as far as Valley 
Park / 
Knightwood,  

 

Public Art     
Public Art Project for the library forecourt  Forecourt lends itself to communal 

space and is ready framed for central 
art sculpture 

Whole of CFH 
area (and 
beyond) 

 

 61



62

This page is intentionally left blank



63



64

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Planning Application - 36 Valley Road, Chandler's Ford
	9 Planning application - 5 Bournemouth Road, Chandler's Ford
	10 Planning application - 107 Hiltingbury Road, Chandler's Ford
	11 Planning application - 6 Wychwood Grove, Chandler's Ford
	13 Community Grants 2012-2013
	AC780AMAppen1- Grants
	AC780AMAppen2 - Grants Appeal
	AC780APP3 - Community Grants 2012-13

	14 Community Investment Programme 2012-2013
	AC787AMApp1 - CIP Priorities
	AC787AMAppen2


